














39 Meeting Street 
Old St. Michael’s Rectory 
Constructed 1767; altered 1886-87 
Miller & Fullerton, builders 
This brick house was built as St. Michael's 
rectory by a Mr. Miller and John Fullerton, 
master builders. It suffered considerable damage 
in the 1886 earthquake. 
 
42 Meeting Street 
Dietrich William Ohlandt House 
Constructed c. 1860 
Dietrich William Ohlandt, a German grocer, built 
this structure as a store and residence. D.W. 
Ohlandt and Sons went out of business in 1956, 
though the store continued delivering groceries to 
Charleston homes until the day it closed. In 1959 
the building was remodeled as a residence. 

 
43 Meeting Street 
James Mitchell House 

Constructed c. 1798 
James Mitchell, a cooper (maker of kegs etc.), 
built this three-story, stuccoed brick house on a 
high basement, sometime after purchasing the site 
in 1798. He sold it in 1818 to Henry Alexander 
DeSaussure. The gates are a 20th century 
addition. 
 
Its most recent resident is Mrs. Joseph R. 
(Elizabeth Jenkins) Young, an active civic leader, 
preservationist and the city of Charleston’s first 
tour guide. Mrs. Young is a descendant of Micah 
Jenkins, an 1854 Citadel graduate and 
Confederate general who served with distinction 
during the Civil War and for whom Jenkins Hall 
on The Citadel campus is named. Mrs. Young’s 
community projects in Charleston include being a 
past president of the Junior League, the 
Preservation Society of Charleston and College of 
Charleston Alumni Association. A life trustee of 
Historic Charleston Foundation and Director 
Emeritus of the Preservation Society of 
Charleston, Mrs. Young rarely missed a meeting 
of the city’s Board of Architectural Review. She 
also has been a leader in the city’s cultural 
enrichment endeavors, having served on the 
boards of the Charleston Symphony Orchestra, 
the Family Service Agency, The United Fund, St. 

Michael's Episcopal Church and the Clean City 
Commission. 
 
Born April 7, 1919 on Edisto Island, Mrs. Young 
grew up speaking the Gullah language fluently. 
As a “Bin Yere” (as opposed to a “Cum Yere”), 
she has developed one of Charleston’s favorite 
gardens using plants indigenous to the area. She 
added a contemporary rental apartment to the 
main house, which has been recognized with 
several design awards.  
 
47 Meeting Street 
Robert M. Allan House 
Constructed c. 1833 
This two-and-a-half story antebellum house was 
for many years the home of Edward Barnwell, 
who is said to have added to the rear portion 
several times to accommodate his 17 children. 
Barnwell, a factor, planter and gardener, 
developed the lot to the south with fruits and 
vegetables and won several silver cups for his 
efforts there. 
 
48 Meeting Street 
First Baptist Church School 
Constructed c. 1840 
This large masonry house was built in the 1840s 
by Otis Mills, builder of the Mills House. In the 
1850s it was the home of James Adger, merchant 
and steamship line developer, reputed to have 
been the richest man in antebellum South 
Carolina. It is now a part of  First Baptist Church 
School. 
 

51 Meeting Street 
Nathaniel Russell House 

Constructed 1808; altered 1857, 1908, 1915; 
restored 1955, 1990s 
The Nathaniel Russell House was built in 1808-
11 by a Rhode Islander who made a large fortune 
as a merchant in Charleston. His house is one of 
the most outstanding Federal townhouses houses 
in America. The rectangular three-story brick 
mansion with an octagonal wing on the south side 
is built of brick with white stone and wood trim. 
It has a transomed entrance with an elliptical 
fanlight, a wrought iron balcony with the 
Russell’s monogram and a balustraded parapet. It 
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